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ADDENDUM No. 1 
 

RFP No. 984 

Allen Creek Railroad Berm Opening Engineering and Assistance 

Due: October 17, 2016 by 2:00 P.M. 
 
The following adjustments shall be made to the Request for Proposal for Allen Creek Railroad 
Berm Opening Engineering and Assistance RFP No. 984 on which proposals will be received 
on/or before October 17, 2016 by 2:00 P.M. 
 
The information contained herein shall take precedence over the original documents and all 
previous addenda (if any), and is appended thereto. This Addendum includes 33 pages. 
 
Offeror is to acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No. 1, including all attachments in its 
Proposal by so indicating in the proposal that the addendum has been received. 
Proposals submitted without acknowledgement of receipt of this addendum will be 
considered nonconforming. 
 
The following forms provided within the RFP Document must be included in submitted 
proposal: 
 

•City of Ann Arbor Non-Discrimination Ordinance Declaration of Compliance 
•City of Ann Arbor Living Wage Ordinance Declaration of Compliance 
•Vendor Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form 

 
Proposals that fail to provide these completed forms listed above upon proposal 
opening may be deemed non-responsive and may not be considered for award. 
 
 
I. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
The following Questions have been received by the City.  Responses are being provided in 
accordance with the terms of the RFP.  Respondents are directed to take note in its review of 
the documents of the following questions and City responses as they affect work or details in 
other areas not specifically referenced here 
 
Question 1 Whether any of the firms that have been involved in prior related work, restricted 

from providing a proposal for this job?   
Answer 1 No. 
 
Question 2 Will the Broadway Bridge Geotechnical information be made available online? 
Answer 2 The Contamination Assessment Report for the Broadway Bridges Reconstruction 

Project that is directly related to the Allen Creek Railroad Berm Opening Project 
is attached to this addendum. 
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Question 3 Are any record drawings for the existing relief sewer or the Allen Creek outflow, 
which can be made available online? 

Answer 3 The as-built drawings for the Allen Creek relief sewers are available for review, 
but we cannot post them online.  Please contact Anne Warrow at 
awarrow@a2gov.org to set up an appointment to review these drawings. 

 
Question 4 Are there any other known utilities in the corridor, other than the sewers and fiber 

optic? 
Answer 4 The City is only aware of the storm sewers and fiber optic present within the 

vicinity of the Allen Creek Railroad Berm Opening Project.  It is expected that the 
selected engineering firm will gather and review any additional information 
pertaining to existing public and private utilities 

 
Question 5 Does the proposal have a page limit? 
Answer 5 Yes, proposals should not be more than 50 sheets (100 sides), not including 

required attachments and resumes. 
 
Question 6 Who maintains the City’s stormwater model? 
Answer 6 The City maintains the calibrated InfoSWMM stormwater hydraulic model.  It is 

expected that the selected firm will work with City’s personnel to gain access to 
the model and produce the necessary accurate and defendable hydrographs and 
all other related information. 

 
Question 7 While the feasibility study identified a preferred alternative, will other alternatives 

be considered during the design phase? 
Answer 7 At this time, the City has elected to move towards completing a detailed design of 

the preferred alternative identified in the feasibility study.  If during the design 
phase, it becomes clear that a different alternative needs to be further explored 
this would be acceptable as time permits.   

 
 The selected firm is expected to analyze alternatives to pedestrian access paths; 

temporary shoo-fly rail alignment; proposed berm opening structures (stormwater 
culvert and pedestrian opening); storm water discharge culvert to the river; the 
Depot Street Relief Storm Sewer; any necessary retaining or flood walls.   

 
 It is expected that the selected firm shall also perform a complete alternative 

analysis as it relates to the applicable environmental requirements including: the 
National Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S.C. 4332); the Council on 
Environmental Quality’s regulations implementing NEPA (40 CFR part 1500 et 
seq.); and FRA’s “Procedures for Considering Environmental Impacts” (45 FR 
40854, June 16, 1980, as revised May 26, 1999, 64 FR 28545). 

 
Question 8 What environmental information or data will be made available? 
Answer 8 The Contamination Assessment Report for the Broadway Bridges Reconstruction 

Project that is directly related to the Allen Creek Railroad Berm Opening Project 
is included in this Addendum.  In addition, a document summarizing 
environmental information known about the DTE site is also included in this 
Addendum. 

 
Question 9 Will the sign-in sheet for this meeting be made available? 
Answer 9 Yes, it is included in this Addendum. 
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Question 10  Is there a specific reason why Consultants shall propose a minimum of three 

different types of wall systems to be used on this project? 
Answer 10 The City acknowledges that different retaining wall systems may be used and/or 

required in different locations or situations (temporary vs. permanent) of the 
project.  An effort will be made to consult the various property owners, whose 
property may be impacted by the retaining wall.  The selection criteria shall be 
based on aesthetics, constructability, and/or cost as appropriate.   

 
Question 11 Several of the tasks outlined in the RFP are very detailed, how specific should 

the fee quotation be? 
Answer 11 The fee quotation shall relate directing to the task outlined in the Consultants 

proposed work plan.  The proposed work plan can split the tasks outlined in the 
RFP or can add to them as the Consultants deems necessary.   

 
 
II. PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING NOTES AND SIGN-IN SHEET 
 
The Pre-Proposal Meeting Notes and sign-in sheet are attached. 
 
Respondents are responsible for any conclusions that they may draw from the information 
contained in the Addendum. 
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Preferred Alternative 
 
The Preferred Alternative is based on Alternative 3, with minor changes to reflect specific concerns 
conveyed to City staff by the MDOT Office of Rail.  This alternative was selected for the following 
reasons: 
 

Alternative 3 addresses the need to provide pedestrian access under the railroad to the DTE 
Gas property (only Alternatives 3 and 4 addressed this need). 

Alternative 3 is less expensive than Alternative 4. 

Alternative 3 (with modifications discussed below) has received positive feedback from the 
MDOT Office of Rail. 

 
Figure 14 illustrates the Preferred Alternative.  The physical location of the culverts is the same as 
shown in Alternative 3, although the sidewalk configuration has been changed to address MDOT 
concerns about minimizing the length of sidewalk within the railroad right-of-way.  This results in 
the need for property/easement acquisition to establish a pedestrian link to Main Street or near the 
Main/Depot intersection. 
 
The proposed culvert/viaduct location cannot be moved further north, as doing so would shorten 
the sidewalk and make it difficult to accommodate ADA-required slopes without installing 
switchbacks.  Furthermore, it would complicate the shoo-fly construction and potentially create a 
conflict between the shoo-fly alignment and the structural supports for the Ann Arbor Railroad 
bridge near the dam. 
 
As the pedestrian/bicycle pathway needs to be protected against inundation during extreme flow 
events, a flood protection wall should be constructed along the pathway and should be set to one 
foot above the 1% storm headwater.  Due to the topography in the project area, it would be more 
ideal to construct the pathway to N. Main (N. Main connection alignment as shown in Figure 14).  
Under this scenario, it would be less expensive to protect the pathway against flooding, as the west 
portion of the pathway would be elevated above the floodplain elevation.  The Depot Street 
connection alignment is problematic, as the existing grades in this area are lower and would require 
flood protection walls along the entire alignment.  This would probably create a conflict with desired 
parking and vehicle access needs. 
 
Pedestrian access across the First Martin property is not shown, as it is yet unclear how the alignment 
of the pedestrian path will be finalized.  This will depend on design-phase negotiations with the 
impacted property owners.  The proposed cross section for the Preferred Alternative is depicted in 
Figure 15, which is essentially a mirror image of the Alternative 3 cross section. 
 
Figure 16 illustrates the potential shoo-fly alignments necessary to accommodate the Preferred 
Alternative.  The varied alignments are based on differing design speeds and will be subject to final 
MDOT approval.  As stated in the description of Alternatives 3 and 4, the shoo-fly would likely 
require the construction of a temporary bridge near the Allen Creek outlet.  This bridge could be 
constructed so as to accommodate a future pedestrian crossing over the Allen Creek outlet, 
immediately outside the railroad right-of-way.  The cost estimate includes the consideration for the 
temporary bridge, but does not include any future retrofits necessary to accommodate pedestrians 
over the Allen Creek outlet. 
 
The Preferred Alternative cost estimate is included in Appendix G.  The estimate is similar to that 
of Alternative 3, with additional cost items related to potential property acquisition costs (buyout of 
parking spaces to accommodate pedestrian/bicycle pathway), additional costs to remove the piers for 
the old (abandoned) railroad and additional right-of-way fencing to meet MDOT feedback. 
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TREES / BUSHES

LEGEND

FENCE

HISTORICAL RIVER CHANNEL LOCATION

NOTES

HURON RIVER BANK

EXISTING MONITORING WELL LOCATION AND NUMBER

1. BASE MAP DEVELOPED FROM SITE PLAN PROVIDED BY MICHCON,  DATED OCTOBER 2007 AND UPDATED USING AERIAL PHOTOS
AND DATA FROM A LIMITED SITE SURVEY CONDUCTED IN JUNE 2009, APRIL 2010, AND JULY 2011, AND SITE TOPO DATED
AUGUST 2011.

2. OFF-SITE FEATURES ARE DEPICTED CONCEPTUALLY. RIVER WIDTH AND BOUNDARY APPROXIMATE.

3. MONITORING WELLS W-4 AND W-6 ABANDONED BEFORE 1996.

4. EXCAVATION PERFORMED AT THE BROADWAY SITE BY EARTH TECH, INC. IN 2006 RANGED IN DEPTH FROM 6 to 10 FEET.

5. EXCAVATION PERFORMED BY FLUOR DANIEL GTI AT BROADWAY SITE IN 1998 TO A DEPTH OF APPROXIMATELY 4 FEET.

6. LOCATIONS OF HISTORICAL SITE FEATURES ARE APPROXIMATE BASED ON SANBORN FIRE INSURANCE MAPS, AERIAL PHOTOS
AND THE EDI 1985 SITE MAP.

7. LOCATIONS OF HISTORICAL SOIL BORINGS ARE APPROXIMATE BASED ON EDI 1985 SITE PLAN, FLUOR DANIEL 1997 SITE PLAN,
AND EARTH TECH 2005 AND 2006 SITE PLANS.

SS-3

MW-6

SOIL BORING LOCATION AND NUMBER
(EDI 1985 OR FLUOR DANIEL 1997)

RAILROAD TRACKS

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF FORMER STRUCTURES

ABANDONED MONITORING WELL LOCATION AND NUMBERW-4

SS-107 SURFACE SOIL SAMPLE LOCATION AND NUMBER (RETEC 1999)

BH-12 SOIL BORING LOCATION AND NUMBER (EARTH TECH 2005)

EXISTING SOIL BORING LOCATION AND NUMBER
(EARTH TECH 2006)

DL-3 SOIL SAMPLE LOCATION AND NUMBER (RETEC 2003)

23 EXCAVATION SAMPLE LOCATION AND NUMBER (EARTH TECH 2006)

APPROXIMATE SITE BOUNDARY

FORMER RAILROAD TRACKS (SPUR)

SB-09-01 SOIL BORING LOCATION AND NUMBER (RMT 2009)

EB-01

SB-10-34 SOIL BORING LOCATION AND NUMBER (RMT 2010)

RW-01 RECOVERY WELL LOCATION AND NUMBER (RMT 2010)

OBSERVATION WELL LOCATION AND NUMBER
(RMT 2010 FOR P-4, P-5, AND P-6)

P-5

SB-11-06 SOIL BORING LOCATION AND NUMBER (RMT 2011)

RW-04 RECOVERY WELL LOCATION AND NUMBER (RMT 2011)
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF SEDIMENT TRANSECT
SAMPLING LOCATION AND NUMBERT-1-1

T8 TRANSECT LINE LOCATION

APPROXIMATE EXTENT OF OIL-LIKE
MATERIAL IN SATURATED SOIL

APPROXIMATE EXTENT OF TAR-LIKE
MATERIAL (TLM)

APPROXIMATE EXTENT OF PART 201
DIRECT CONTACT CRITERIA EXCEEDANCES
FOR ONE OR MORE PAH CONSTITUENTS IN
SHALLOW SOIL (0-2 FEET)

APPROXIMATE EXTENT OF OIL-LIKE
MATERIAL (OLM) IN UNSATURATED
SOIL

APPROXIMATE CITY STORM DRAIN
LOCATION

A A'
CROSS SECTION LOCATOR

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF

ORIGINAL
HURON RIVER

CHANNEL
(FILLED ~1915)

SB-10-52

S-17

SB-11-23

SB-10-56

SB-11-32

EXTENT OF
BLUE MATERIAL

(Area = 40808.7 sq/ft)

EXTENT OF
BLUE MATERIAL
(Area = 1,273.2 sq/ft)

DL-4

TW-6R

TW-2

W-3

TW-8

MW-1

TW-1

ET-04

ET-05

ET-06

W-5

W-9

P-3

W-7

TW-9

W-8

TW-4

TW-11

MW-2

TW-7R

F L O W      D I R E C T I O N

FORMER SERVICE
CENTER BUILDING

BUILDING
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R
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E
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L-11

W-4

W-6

AMTRAK STATION

ENTRANCE

GATE

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

FORMER MICHCON BROADWAY
STREET MGP SITE

GRASSY AREA

PAVED AREA

BH-13

BH-10

BH-11

BH-6

BH-7

BH-8

BH-9
BH-3

BH-5 BH-1

BH-20

BH-26

SS-104

SS-102

SS-103

DL-15

DL-16

DL-5

DL-1

DL-2

DL-3

DL-17DL-18

L-10

L-01

BH-15

BH-16

BH-17

L-04

L-06

L-07

SS-107

SS-2

DL-13

L-16

GP-3

S-6

SS-3

S-5
S-4

MW-3

L-14

L-09

GP-1

S-10

S-9

S-13

L-12

L-18
DL-10

DL-9

DL-8

S-2

SW-3 BH-2

BH-4

SW-4

SW-5

SW-2

SW-1

SW-8

SW-7

L-08

SW-6

B-1

B-2

B-3

B-4

B-5

B-6

B-7

B-8

SS-7

S-14

SS-8

S-16

S-11

S-15

SS-6

S-1

DL-12
S-3

DL-11

SS-101

GP-2

S-12

L-05

SB-3

L-02
1
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1130

32
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46

48
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20 19 18 17 16 15

45

44

43

42
41

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

FORMER EXCAVATION
BOUNDARY (1998)

(SEE NOTE 5)

EDGE O
F PAVEMENT

TW-3

BH-14
10

40

S-7

SB-09-16

SB-09-28SB-09-30

SB-09-27
SB-09-31

SB-09-10

SB-09-20

SB-09-18

SB-09-32

SB-09-07

SB-09-05

SB-09-26

SB-09-25

SB-09-04

SB-09-34

SB-09-03

SB-09-35SB-09-39

SB-09-40

SB-09-06

SB-09-02

SB-09-11

SB-09-36

SB-09-33 SB-09-24

SB-09-37
SB-09-09

SB-09-13

SB-09-22

SB-09-29

SB-09-01

SB-09-12C

SB-09-12B

SB-09-12A

SB-09-12D

SB-09-14

SB-09-33A
SB-09-24B
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Table A1

Summary of Detected Volatile Organic Compounds in Soil

2009-2011 Remedial Investigation - Former MichCon Broadway Street MGP

Ann Arbor, Michigan� � � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � 	
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Non-Residential Drinking Water Protection (DWP) Criteria, Groundwater Surface Water Interface (GSI) Protection Criteria, Groundwater Contact Protection, Non-Residential Direct Contact Criteria Criteria,

Non-Residential Soil Volatilization to Indoor Air Inhalation Criteria (SVIIC), and Non-Residential Ambient Air Infinite Source Volatile Soil Inhalation Criteria (VSIC) from Part 201 Generic Cleanup Criteria, March 25, 2011.

µg/kg = micrograms per kilogram

bold font denotes concentrations detected above laboratory reporting limits

 Denotes concentrations above one or more criteria

1) Criterion is not protective for surface water used as a drinking water source as described in footnote {X} of Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) Op Memo 1 Part 201, Attachment 1.

2) Criterion shown is based on the preliminary site-specific water quality-based effluent limits provided by the MDEQ in a letter dated 7/1/2010 and were calculated in accordance with MDEQ RD Op Memo No. 1,

    Attachment 9 (March 2005).
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UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ PQ[TU PSVWQ[YQRY
UQXQ Z[[Qc `]̂̂_ `\̂̂] `]̂̂a `â̂a `d̂̂c `^̂̂_ `d̂̂] `â̂

NO PXQ PQSTQ PUVWQ[YQRY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ PQSTU eb PSVWQ[YQRYUQ
XQ Z[[Qf `_̂̂_a `^̂̂c\ `^̂̂c_ `^̂̂â `^̂̂f `â̂g `f̂̂cg `^̂̂

NO PXQ PQbTQ PUVWQ[YQRY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ PQbT[ eb Pb ebVWQ[YQRYUQX
Q Z[[Qhĥ
\ĝ_ `ĝ̂a `_̂̂a `ĥ̂_ `â̂hf̂
c `^̂̂

NO PXQ PQiTQ eb PUVWQ[YQRYUQ
XQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ PQiTb PjVWQ[YQRY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ PXXTQ PUVWQ[YXQY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Qf̂̂
hâg]̂
h]̂f_̂
af̂ĥ̂

NO PXQ PXXT[ PbVWQ[YXQY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ PXiTQ PUVWQ[YXQY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q]]̂
]̂̂]ĝ

Z[[Q Z[[Qf_̂

NO PXQ PXiTi PkVWQ[YXQY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ PXkTQ PUVWQ[YXQY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q]ĉ

Z[[Q Z[[Qa]̂

NO PXQ PXkT[ PbVWQ[YXQY
UQXQf_̂
a `_̂̂f `ĝ̂\ `^̂̂] `\̂̂\ `_̂̂_ `â̂_ `\̂̂] `ĥ̂

NO PXQ PXRTQ PUVWQ[YXQY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q\̂̂
_ `f̂̂_ `ĉ̂_ `f̂̂dd̂
\ĉ_ `f̂̂

NO PXQ PXRT[ PbVWQ[YXQY
UQXQ Z[[Q\]̂
fĥ_ `\̂̂_ `d̂̂c `f̂̂h_̂
ff̂_ `]̂̂

NO PXQ PUSTi PkVWQ[YXXY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Qa]̂
]ĥfĉ
]â Z[[Q]̂̂

NO PXQ PUbTQ eb PUVWQ[YXXYUQ
XQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ PUbTj PRVWQ[YXXY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ PUiTQ PUVWQ[YXXY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ P[jTQ PUVWQ[YXbY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Qfĉ
]ĝ\̂̂

Z[[Q Z[[Qf̂̂

NO PXQ P[jTS PiVWQ[YXbY
UQXQ Z[[Q]ĥ

Z[[Q_ `â̂_ `f̂̂c `^̂̂_ `^̂̂]f̂
_ `â̂

NO PXQ P[kTX PUVWQ[YXjY
UQXQ_c `^̂̂gh `^̂̂_â `^̂̂_ĉ `^̂̂_â `^̂̂_]̂ `^̂̂]h `^̂̂aa `^̂̂_â `^̂̂

NO PXQ P[RTQ PUVWQ[YXiY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q]ĝ
]ĥ\ĉ

Z[[Q Z[[Qf]̂

NO PXQ PSUTQ PUVWQ[YXjY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q]]̂
fĝ\ĥ

Z[[Q Z[[Qfĉ

NO PXQ PSUT[ PbVWQ[YXjY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Qd̂̂
_ `â̂_ `ĉ̂c `^̂̂]d̂
d̂̂_ `ĝ̂

NO PXQ PSSTQ PUVWXQYQiY
UQXQ ZXjQQ ZXjQQ ZXjQQ ZXjQQ ZXjQQ_ `ĝ̂ ZXjQQ ZXjQQ ZXjQQ

NO PXQ PSbTQ PUVWXQYQiY
UQXQf̂̂
f̂̂d̂̂
_ `ĝ̂_ `ĝ̂c `ĉ̂_ `^̂̂d\̂
_ `ĥ̂

NO PXQ PSjTQ PUVWXQYQiY
UQXQ ZXjQQ ZXjQQa `\̂̂g `]̂̂g `d̂̂_̂ `^̂̂] `ĥ̂a `]̂̂h `^̂̂

NO PXQ PbQTQ PUVWXQYQiY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ PbQT[ eb Pb ebVWXQYQiYUQX
Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Q

NO PXQ PbbTQ PUVWXQYQjY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Qh]̂
_ `_̂̂_ `]̂̂f]̂
fâ_ `^̂̂

NO PXQ PbbTU eb PS ebVWXQYQjYUQX
Q Z[[Qgâ
gĥa `^̂̂a `â̂] `â̂_ `ĥ̂_ `â̂a `ĉ̂

NO PXQ PbiTQ PUVWXQYQjY
UQXQ Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[[Qaf̂
]̂̂]\̂

Z[[Q Z[[Q Z[iQ

NO PXQ PbiT[ PbVWXQYQjY
UQXQ Z[[Qa\̂
af̂_ `ĉ̂_ `â̂_ `f̂̂d\̂
\\̂_ `]̂̂
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6 789:; <=> ?7� 8:> =@>A 78> ?@>B 8:� 7B> ?7B =
� 8: CD ?EB; ?:>B =FGB 7?@>� 8:> =@>� 7B> ?7B = H :B> E� 8: CD ?EB; ?:>B =FI1JJ�

� 8: CD ?EB; ?:>B =FK LMB ?:>KB 7J :NB :B> ?I 897@?1IJ�K :=F O> ? � 8: CD ?EB; ?:>B =FGPA� 7B> ?7B = 6IJA 78> ?@>B 8:� 7B> ?7B =
QR STU SVTWT SXYZ[X\TV\
XTTU ]^̂T_ `abb ]^̂Tcdb

]^̂Tefb
g `bbbg `hbb

QR STU SVTŴ SiYZ[X\TV\
XTTU ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T ST̂WT SXYZT̂\TU\
XT[T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T ST̂WX SVYZT̂\TU\
XT[Tg `bbbf `hbbfeb
_ `bbbedb
adbc `hbba `gbb

QR S[T STVWT SXYZT̂\TU\
XT[T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂Tg `jbb ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T STVWX ki SVYZT̂\TU\XT
[T_ `abbfj `bbb_ `jbbd `cbbg `gbb_ `abbdg `bbbfh `bbb

QR S[T STiWT SXYZT̂\TU\
XT[T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T STiŴ ki Si kiYZT̂\TU\XT[
Tceb
_ `abb ]^̂Tg `ebbfcb
c `cbb_ `ebbc `gbb

QR S[T STlWT ki SXYZT̂\TU\XT
[T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T STlWi SmYZT̂\TU\
XT[T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T S[[WT SXYZT̂\[T\
XT[T ]^̂Tg `jbb ]^̂Tehb

]^̂T ]^̂Tg `cbbg `jbb

QR S[T S[[Ŵ SiYZT̂\[T\
XT[T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T S[lWT SXYZT̂\[T\
XT[T ]^̂Taab

]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂Tceb
abb

QR S[T S[lWl SnYZT̂\[T\
XT[T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T S[nWT SXYZT̂\[T\
XT[T ]^̂Tfdb

]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂Tdgb

QR S[T S[nŴ SiYZT̂\[T\
XT[Teeb
gd `bbb_ `dbbg `hbbjbb
jgbgj `bbbgf `bbb

QR S[T S[UWT SXYZT̂\[T\
XT[T ]^̂Tc `bbb ]^̂Thcb

]^̂T ]^̂Tg `abb_ `jbb

QR S[T S[UŴ SiYZT̂\[T\
XT[T ]^̂T_ `hbb ]^̂Tjjb

]^̂T ]^̂Tg `_bbc `gbb

QR S[T SXVWl SnYZT̂\[[\
XT[T ]^̂Tf_b

]^̂Tchb
]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂Tfjb

QR S[T SXiWT ki SXYZT̂\[[\XT
[T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T SXiWm SUYZT̂\[[\
XT[T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T SXlWT SXYZT̂\[[\
XT[T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T Sm̂WT SXYZT̂\[i\
XT[T ]^̂Tjab

]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂Tdgb
g `bbb

QR S[T Sm̂WV SlYZT̂\[i\
XT[T ]^̂Tg `jbb ]^̂Tg `gbb ]^̂T ]^̂Thgb
_ `_bb

QR S[T Sn̂W[ SXYZT̂\[m\
XT[Tgg `bbbe_b `bbbjg `bbbf_ `bbbcb `bbbd_ `bbbeab `bbbehb `bbb

QR S[T SÛWT SXYZT̂\[l\
XT[T ]^̂Tg `gbb ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂Tajb
g `bbb

QR S[T SVXWT SXYZT̂\[m\
XT[T ]^̂Tagb

]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂Te_b
aeb

QR S[T SVXŴ SiYZT̂\[m\
XT[T ]^̂Tc `gbb ]^̂Tfcb

]^̂Tdab
_ `ebb_ `dbb

QR S[T SVVWT SXYZ[T\Tl\
XT[T ][mTTc `_bb ][mTT ][mTT ][mTT ][mTT ][mTT_ `hbb

QR S[T SViWT SXYZ[T\Tl\
XT[T ]^̂Tc `ebb ]^̂Tg `cbb ]^̂T ]^̂T_ `cbbc `fbb

QR S[T SVmWT SXYZ[T\Tl\
XT[T ][mTTga `bbb ][mTTd `ebb ][mTT ][mTTge `bbbgh `bbb

QR S[T SiTWT SXYZ[T\Tl\
XT[T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T SiTŴ ki Si kiYZ[T\Tl\XT[
T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂T

QR S[T SiiWT SXYZ[T\Tm\
XT[T ]^̂Tg `hbb ]^̂Thdb

]^̂T ]^̂Th_b
g `dbb

QR S[T SiiWX ki SV kiYZ[T\Tm\XT[
Tedb
f `fbbeab
_ `ebbceb
hjbe `gbbf `bbb

QR S[T SilWT SXYZ[T\Tm\
XT[T ]^̂Tdeb

]^̂Tccb
]^̂T ]^̂T ]^̂Tfjb

QR S[T SilŴ SiYZ[T\Tm\
XT[T ]^̂T_ `_bb ]^̂Tjdb

]^̂Tegb
g `_bb_ `cbb
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mnmn
mnmn
mnmn
mnmn
mnfg clee

VW XYZ XYt\[ Xk̂_Z[̀YỲ]ZYZ
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Pre-Proposal Meeting Notes 
for 

RFP #984 - Allen Creek Railroad Berm Opening Engineering and 
Assistance  

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The City of Ann Arbor is requesting proposals from a professional civil engineering firm(s) to 
provide engineering design and assistance with preparing the necessary grant applications and all 
supporting documentation for the Allen Creek Railroad Berm Opening Project. 
 
ITEMS TO DISCUSS 
 
1. All attendees are asked to sign the Meeting Sign-In Sheet.  Minutes of this meeting and 

list of attendees will be provided via formal Addendum and posted on BidNet.  In 
addition, responses to questions brought up today or written questions submitted by email 
will also be provided via formal Addendum.  This addendum is expected on or around 
October 12th.  Your firm should receive notification of the Addendum being issued in the 
same manner you received notification of this RFP being published 

 
2. Schedule 

Activity/Event Anticipated  Date 

Pre-Proposal Meeting October 4, 2016  

Written Question Deadline October 7, 2016 

Proposal Due Date October 17, 2016 

Interview Consultants October 31 – November 4, 2016 

Consultant Selection/Negotiate Final Professional 
Services Agreement (PSA) 

November 2016 

Expected City Council Authorization of PSA December 2016 

PSA Execution, Award and Notice to Proceed January 2017 

 
3. Brief overview of the Scope including a summary of the findings of the Allen Creek 

Berm: Feasibility of Flood Reduction and Pedestrian Options, dated December 16, 2013 
and the FEMA Grant – Jerry Hancock 

 
4. Questions 

Question 1 Whether any of the firms that have been involved in prior related work, restricted 
from providing a proposal for this job?   

Answer 1 No. 
 



Question 2 While the feasibility study identified a preferred alternative, will other 
alternatives be considered during the design phase? 

Answer 2 At this time, the City has elected to move towards the preferred alternative 
identified in the feasibility study.  If during the design phase, it becomes clear 
that a different alternative needs to be further explored this would be acceptable 
as time permits.   

 
Question 3 What environmental information or data will be made available? 
Answer 3 The Contamination Assessment Report for the Broadway Bridges 

Reconstruction Project that is directly related to the Allen Creek Railroad 
Berm Opening Project is included in Addendum #1.  In addition, a 
document summarizing environmental information known about the DTE 
site is also included in Addendum #1. 

 
Question 4 Will the sign-in sheet for this meeting be made available? 
Answer 4 Yes, it is attached to this document and will be included in Addendum #1. 
 
Question 5  Is there a specific reason why Consultants shall propose a minimum of 

three different types of wall systems to be used on this project? 
Answer 5 The City acknowledges that different retaining wall systems may be used 

and/or required in different locations or situations (temporary vs. 
permanent) of the project.  An effort will be made to consult the various 
property owners, whose property may be impacted by the retaining wall.  
The selection criteria shall be based on aesthetics, constructability, and/or 
cost as appropriate.   

 
Question 6 Several of the tasks outlined in the RFP are very detailed, how specific 

should the fee quotation be? 
Answer 6 The fee quotation shall relate directing to the task outlined in the 

Consultants proposed work plan.  The proposed work plan can split the 
tasks outlined in the RFP or can add to them as the Consultants deems 
necessary.   

 
 
5. Washtenaw County Parks & Recreation Commission -  Peter Sanderson 
 

A brief overview of the Bandemer Tunnel, which is a similar project, was presented by 
Peter Sanderson of Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation.  An RFP for the detailed 
design for this project may be issued by Washtenaw County later this year. 



Date: October 4, 2016

NAME EMAIL

Peter Sanderson

Washtenaw County 
Parks and Recreation 

Commission

2230 Platt Road Office: 734-971-6336 ext. 332

sandersonp@ewashtenaw.org
Ann Arbor, MI 48107

Chris Carson City of Ann Arbor

301 E. Huron St. Office: 734-794-6410 ext. 43631

ccarson@a2gov.org
Ann Arbor, MI 48107

Jerry Hancock City of Ann Arbor

301 E. Huron St. Office: 734-794-6430 ex. 43709

Jhancock@a2gov.org
Ann Arbor, MI 48107

Anne Warrow City of Ann Arbor

301 E. Huron St. Office: 734-794-6410 ext. 43639

awarrow@a2gov.org
Ann Arbor, MI 48107

Beth Taylor CTI and Associates

28001 Cabot Drive 
btaylor@cticompanies.comMobile 313-258-0181

Novi, MI 48377

Jeremy Hedden Bergman

Office  517-272-9835

jhedden@bergmannpc.com
Lansing , MI  

Patti McCall Tetra Tech

Office 734-272-4069

patti.mccall@tetratech.com
Ann Arbor, MI  

Tammy Rabideau Tetra Tech

Office 734-213-4068

tammy.rabideau@tatratech.com
Ann Arbor, MI  

Mark Pascoe Stantec 

Office 734-214-1865

mark.pascoe@stantec.com
Ann Arbor, MI  

Poonam Ramesh SOMAT

660 Woodward Ave @ 2430 Office 313-887-7125

poonam@somateng.com
Detroit, MI 48226

Mark Mattson DLZ

4401 Martec Office 517-961-4040

mmattson@dlz.com
Melvindale, MI  48122

Manoj Sethi DLZ

1425 Keystone Ave office 517-393-6800

msethi@dlz.com
Lansing , MI  48911

Joshua Salazar 

HDR
5405 Data Court Office 734-332-6463 joshua.salazar@hdrinc.com

Ann Abor, MI  48108

PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING SIGN-IN SHEET

PROJECT: RFP #984 - Allen Creek Railroad Berm Opening Engineering and Assistance   FILE #:  2016-032     

PLEASE PRINT (All information needs to be filled in to receive meeting minutes)
REPRESENTING MAILING ADDRESS TELEPHONE
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